Psychoanalytic Center of the Carolinas

Board of Directors

September 11, 2023

Minutes

Present: Harold Kudler (Pres), Burton Hutto (Sec), Vann Pearsall (Executive Director), Dhipthi Brundage, Chris Erskine, Josie Sawyer, Scott Warren, Tricia Wilson

Absent: John Riley

Welcome

II. Procedural Section

a. Minutes: The August minutes were approved with a minor revision.

III. Old business

- a. The proposed bylaw revisions were again reviewed. (See Appendix 1.) The board briefly discussed minor revisions. *The revisions were approved*. They will be distributed to the membership prior to a special meeting of members in January to vote on this proposal and to consider a potential new president of the board.
- b. The nominating committee has several possible new board members in discussion.

IV. Committee reports

a. The reports were distributed in advance. (See Appendix 2.)

V. New business

- a. A proposal by the ARTF to support DEI training for PCC leadership as outlined in the committee reports was discussed. The board discussed the importance of supporting such training for all PCC members.
 - The Board feels that the ARTF is best qualified to administer these grants including their announcement to the PCC membership, determining which training programs are suitable, reviewing applications, and selecting recipients.
 - ii. The Board concurs with the ARTF's recommendations regarding priorities in awarding grants as follows:
 - 1. Board and faculty members
 - 2. Committee and Study Group Leaders
 - 3. Matriculated students and general membership (as investments in the future of the PCC)
 - iii. Three Board members reported their positive experiences in attending either the 3-hour REI Groundwater Training or a 2-day REI Workshop. One suggested that the ARTF consider making \$250 grants available for those who might choose to attend a 2-day REI workshop.

- iv. The Board asks that the ARTF develop an evaluation process to determine the impact of this investment as a guide to next steps.
- v. The board approved this proposal to allocate \$1000 for this training.

VI. Executive Director report

- a. Vann reported Katherine Jarman was offered the position of Marketing and Communications director. She will start this month and work with G3 for a couple weeks to take over most of their recent projects.
- b. The website update is going smoothly. G3 will end its involvement Sept 30. Lucy will take over the Constant Contact projects.
- c. The ATRF would like to join the board meeting. The board agreed that the November meeting would be a good time.
- VII. Next Board meeting will be Monday, October 2, 2023.
- VIII. Adjourn

Burton Hutto, Secretary

Appendix 1

Bylaw Amendment Recommendations:

The Executive Committee of the PCC met on July 12th to discuss a series of proposed amendments, updates, and minor corrections to the PCC bylaws. Many of these amendments are simple changes to address the addition of the executive director position, correction of outdated terms, and syncing the bylaws with the policies and procedures adopted by the board or the TEC.

Proposed Amendments:

1. ARTICLE I-OFFICES, Section 2 – Other Places of Business

Proposed Amendment: Remove "Foundation" and replace with "PCC."

Current:

Branch or subordinate offices may be established at any time by the Board of
 Directors at any place or places where the Foundation is qualified to do business.

• Proposed:

Branch or subordinate offices may be established at any time by the Board of
 Directors at any place or places where <u>the PCC</u> is qualified to do business.

<u>ARTICLE III – MEMBERS, Section 3 - Meeting of the Members</u>

2. Section 3C, Quorum

Proposed Amendment: Remove "Clinical Members" as that membership category no longer exists.

Current: Except as stated specifically to the contrary, a valid quorum exists at any meeting
of the members including Annual Meetings and Special Meetings at which 25% of the

 Clinical Members entitled to vote are present or represented by proxy.

1

Proposed: Except as stated specifically to the contrary, a valid quorum exists at any meeting
of the members including Annual Meetings and Special Meetings at which 25% of the
members entitled to vote are present or represented by proxy.

3. Section 3D, Manner of Acting

Proposed Amendment: Update language to include "electronic polling system" as a means of voting given our continued use of virtual meetings.

- Current: Unless otherwise required by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the vote of the majority of the members present or via proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be required to carry out any action of the members. Voting may be carried out by show of hands or by secret ballot. Proxy votes are permitted at meetings of members if written evidence of the assignment of proxy is provided to the Secretary of the PCC by email or other writing prior to the beginning of the meeting. Except as stated specifically to the contrary in these bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation, a vote of 50% plus one of the membership present shall control.
- Proposed: Unless otherwise required by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the vote of the majority of the members present or via proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be required to carry out any action of the members. <u>Voting may be carried out by show of hands, electronic polling system, or by secret ballot</u>. Proxy votes are permitted at meetings of members if written evidence of the assignment of proxy is provided to the Secretary of the PCC by email or other writing prior to the beginning of the meeting. Except as stated specifically to the contrary in these bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation, a vote of 50% plus one of the membership present shall control.

4. Section 4, Categories of Members

Proposed Amendment: Delete Professional Plus (4B) and Community Plus (4D) Membership levels.

Notes: Those are designations only used by the Business Manager to renew PEP Web subscriptions and are not official member categories as approved by the board. Members can

still opt into PEP-Web subscriptions, but it is not necessary to have them in the bylaws as we do not publicly advertise "Plus" anymore.

5. Section 4C, Community Members

Proposed Amendment: The Committee recommends allowing Community members to serve as officers on the board including President Elect, President, and Past President.

Notes: Our community members join because of their interest in psychoanalysis and bring a wealth of knowledge and experience from their careers and from serving on other non-profit boards. This recommendation comes with the understanding that any Community Member nominated for these offices: has demonstrated interest in expanding our mission through their engagement prior to being nominated for the board; shall be duly elected by the membership; and has the support and confidence of the of the board of directors. As a reminder, the bylaws specify the board must include at least four Professional PCC Members, including two psychoanalysts meeting full APsA standards for membership and two members of the TEC, including the TEC Director.

- Current: Community Members are individuals who are committed to the purpose of the
 PCC. Community Members may contribute to specific programs or committees of the PCC,
 bringing skills, knowledge and commitment that will contribute to the fulfillment of the
 purpose of the PCC. Community Members may serve as Board members and officers, with
 the exception of President or President Elect.
- Proposed: Community Members are individuals who are committed to the purpose of the
 PCC. Community Members may contribute to specific programs or committees of the PCC,
 bringing skills, knowledge and commitment that will contribute to the fulfillment of the
 purpose of the PCC. Community Members may serve as Board members and as officers,
 including President or President Elect.

ARTICLE IV - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6. Section 1, General Powers

Proposed Amendment: Add sentence establishing the Executive Director as ex-officio:

• Proposed: The Board may hire, and will evaluate, support, and if necessary, terminate, an Executive Director; the board will monitor the Executive Director's implementation of PCC's programs, membership services, and overall organizational management. A job description for the Executive Director will be developed and maintained by the Board. The Executive Director will operate under the terms and conditions as provided by the Board, and in accordance with the PCC's personnel policies and procedures. The Board will vest in the Executive Director the authority to manage, direct, supervise, and otherwise administer the Center's programs and services, including its administrative staff/designees. The Executive Director shall be a member ex-officio of the board and all committees but shall have no vote.

7. Section 2, Number and Terms of Office

Proposed Amendment: Update language to reflect that board members cannot be forced to serve until a successor can be found; clarify terms of office are set to align with the fiscal year.

Notes: This statement contradicts other Sections which detail term limits for the President Elect, President, and Past President. The change leaves open the door for someone to hold office but does not require them to do so as a condition of board service.

Current: The Board shall consist of no fewer than six (6) and not more than eighteen (18) members, the exact number of which shall be determined from time to time by vote of the Board of Directors. All members of the Board shall hold office until their successors shall have been elected and qualified. The term of office for members of the Board of Directors shall be two years, with a maximum continuous service on the Board of three consecutive

<u>terms</u>. After three terms, a member may serve on the Board again after a minimum one-year hiatus. In order to ensure there are at all times experienced members on the Board, half of the Board members shall be elected for their two-year term each year at the annual meeting.

Proposed: The Board shall consist of no fewer than six (6) and not more than eighteen (18) members, the exact number of which shall be determined from time to time by vote of the Board of Directors. All members of the Board may hold office until their successors shall have been elected and qualified. The term of office for members of the Board of Directors shall be two fiscal years (July 1 – June 30), with a maximum continuous service on the Board of three consecutive terms. After three terms, a member may serve on the Board again after a minimum one-year hiatus. In order to ensure that there are at all times experienced members on the Board, half of the Board members shall be elected for their two-year term each year at the annual meeting.

8. Section 5, Orientation and Education

Proposed Amendment: Include Executive Director in Orientation process

- Current: All new members of the Board of Directors will receive a comprehensive orientation program. Providing orientation and ensuring an appropriate education program for Directors is the responsibility of the President and the Nominating Committee.
- Proposed: All new members of the Board of Directors will receive a comprehensive orientation program. Providing orientation and ensuring an appropriate education program for Directors is the responsibility of the President, the Nominating Committee, and the Executive Director.

9. Section 7: Vacancies

Proposed Amendment: Clarify term of board members elected to fill vacancies mid-year

allowing them to serve the remainder of the vacant term and, upon election by the

membership, be eligible for the full-term limit set in Article IV, Section 2 (three two-year terms).

• Current: Vacancies occurring in the Board and any increases in the number of positions on

the Board may be filled by majority vote of the remaining directors present at any meeting

of the Board at which a quorum is present. **Any Board member so appointed shall serve**

until the next annual meeting of the members.

Proposed: Vacancies occurring in the Board and any increases in the number of positions on

the Board may be filled by majority vote of the remaining directors present at any meeting

of the Board at which a quorum is present. **Any Board member so appointed shall serve**

until properly elected at the next annual meeting of the members and would thereafter

be eligible to serve up to three additional two-year terms as established in Article IV (2).

ARTICLE V – OFFICERS

10. Section 1: Election

Proposed Amendment: Amend the qualifications for the office of President Elect and President to include Community members and Professional members who are not a matriculated

student, with the understanding that they would vacate the office when/if they choose to

matriculate.

Notes: The president's role is to build relationships, lead the organization to fulfilling the

mission, inspire involvement, share the strategic vision, and keep the PCC focused on fulfilling its

mission. As referenced above, Community Members bring a wealth of organizational experience

to the PCC. Likewise, we have Professional members who may not be currently in training but

are actively involved in our committees and programs and are more than capable of leading an

organization. Asking a Matriculated Student to serve as president could put them in an

6

uncomfortable position if organizational issues arise that includes another matriculated student or training analysts and supervisors.

- Current: The officers of the PCC shall be a President, President Elect, Past President, Secretary, and Treasurer, and shall be members of the Board. They shall be nominated by the Board and presented to the members for a vote at the annual meeting. No person shall hold more than one office at the same time. The President, Past President, and President Elect must be Professional Members who have graduated from a psychoanalytic psychotherapy certificate program approved by the Training and Education Committee or have equivalent training, or from a psychoanalytic training program approved by APsaA or IPA to be nominated or elected for each of these offices.
- Proposed: The officers of the PCC shall be a President, President Elect, Past President, Secretary, and Treasurer, and shall be members of the Board. They shall be nominated by the Board and presented to the members for a vote at the annual meeting. No person shall hold more than one office at the same time. Anyone nominated to serve as President, Past President, and President Elect must be a Community Member or a Professional Member who is not a matriculated student or who has graduated from a psychoanalytic psychotherapy certificate program approved by the Training and Education Committee or who has equivalent training, or from a psychoanalytic training program approved by APSA or IPA.

11. Section 2: Term of Office

Proposed Amendments: Remove the one-year term limits on Past President and President Elect and remove the language that alternates Past President and President Elect; Correct the reference to Article V, Section 3C; Add a provision for a third year of service in special circumstances with board approval and member election.

Notes: Allowing a President Elect and Past President to serve simultaneously offers more support for the President during their term and gives the President Elect more time to learn the role, identify priorities when their term begins, and recruit new board members to serve.

- Current: With the exception of the President Elect and Past President who will serve one (1) year terms, the officers shall serve for two (2) year terms. The President's term of office ends at the close of the Annual Meeting of members after he/she has served 2 years as President, at which time he/she becomes the Past President, and the President Elect takes the office of President. The Past President ends his or her term of office at the end of the Annual Meeting of Members beginning the last year of office of the President, when the next President Elect takes office. The President Elect shall be a Professional Member and serve a one-year term starting at the end of the Annual Meeting of Members marking the beginning of a President's last year of office. No President shall succeed him/herself in the office of President, except in the event that he/she as Past President assumes the role of a President who becomes unable to serve. The offices of Past President and President Elect shall alternate. There will not be both a President Elect and Past President holding office simultaneously. If both the President Elect and Past President offices become vacant simultaneously, the President and the Board must act expeditiously: If the vacancy is in the last year of a President's term, the Board must act to nominate and elect by the Members a President Elect at an annual or Special meeting of Members within 60 days of vacancy using the procedure in Article 4 (4). If the vacancy is not in the last year of a President's term, the President may use the procedure in **Article V(C)(3)** to appoint a Past President.
- Proposed: The officers shall serve for two (2) year terms. The President's term of office ends at the close of the Annual Meeting of members after he/she has served 2 years as President, at which time he/she becomes the Past President, and the President Elect takes the office of President. No President shall succeed him/herself in the office of President, except in the event that he/she as Past President assumes the role of a President who becomes unable to serve. If both the President Elect and Past President offices become vacant simultaneously, the President and the Board must act expeditiously: If the vacancy is in the last year of a President's term, the Board must act to nominate and elect by the Members a President Elect at an annual or Special meeting of Members within 60 days of vacancy using the procedure in Article 4 (4). If the vacancy is not in the last year of a President's term, the President may use the procedure in Article V(C)(3) to appoint a Past President. In special circumstances, an officer may choose to serve an additional year with board approval and proper election by the members.

12. Section 3E: Secretary

Proposed Amendment: Replace "administrator" with "Executive Director" in last sentence.

- Current: The Secretary shall cause notices of all meetings to be served as prescribed in these Bylaws and shall keep or cause to be kept the minutes of all meetings of the Board. The Secretary shall have charge of the seal of the PCC. The Secretary shall perform such other duties and possess such other powers as are incident to that office or as are assigned by the President or the Board. The Secretary shall send a copy of the bylaws and policy manual to each new board member promptly upon his or her acceptance to the Board. The Secretary shall keep a copy of all minutes and Board adopted policies and procedures for each committee and office of the PCC. The administrator will keep a copy of the minutes when the Secretary is unavailable.
- Proposed: The Secretary shall cause notices of all meetings to be served as prescribed in these Bylaws and shall keep or cause to be kept the minutes of all meetings of the Board. The Secretary shall have charge of the seal of the PCC. The Secretary shall perform such other duties and possess such other powers as are incident to that office or as are assigned by the President or the Board. The Secretary shall send a copy of the bylaws and policy manual to each new board member promptly upon his or her acceptance to the Board. The Secretary shall keep a copy of all minutes and Board adopted policies and procedures for each committee and office of the PCC. The Executive Director will keep a copy of the minutes when the Secretary is unavailable.

<u>ARTICLE VI – COMMITTEES</u>

13. Section 1A, Executive Committee

Proposed Amendment: Include Executive Director in description of duties of personnel committee.

Current: The Board's Executive Committee shall consist of the President, President Elect,
 Secretary and Treasurer, and one or two at-large member(s) of the Board selected by the
 Board. The Executive Committee shall follow the policies and procedures as adopted by the

Board for this committee. The Executive Committee may act on behalf of the Board in the intervals between Board meetings. The Executive Committee will act as the PCC's personnel committee establishing job descriptions, hiring, evaluating, and terminating employees.

• Proposed: The Board's Executive Committee shall consist of the President, President Elect, Secretary and Treasurer, and one or two at-large member(s) of the Board selected by the Board. The Executive Committee shall follow the policies and procedures as adopted by the Board for this committee. The Executive Committee may act on behalf of the Board in the intervals between Board meetings. The Executive Committee will act as the PCC's personnel committee, supporting the Executive Director in establishing job descriptions, hiring, evaluating, and terminating employees.

14. Section 1D, Training and Education Committee

Proposed Amendment: Update language to allow the PCC Board Nominating Committee to serve as the TEC Nominating Subcommittee administer elections for TEC according to process in bylaws.

Notes: No change in procedure for the election of TEC officers, it allows the organization to not duplicate efforts and helps broaden the search for interested volunteers. It also avoids conflicts when one of the TEC officers who should administer the election is up for re-election. Names will be provided to the Nominating Committee Chair who will present the slate to the faculty for election as set forth in the bylaws and report the results to the TEC.

Current: There shall be a Training and Education Committee as outlined in Article VII. The
TEC officers will be nominated by a committee consisting of the current TEC Director,
current Associate Director, and the current Directors of the two certificate programs. This
nominating subcommittee will select a slate of officers from names put forward by the
certificate programs. The Psychodynamic Psychotherapy Program and the Psychoanalysis

Program will alternate in recommending candidates for Director and Associate Director, with one program recommending names for Director and the other for Associate Director.

The nominating committee will also propose a Secretary to serve. The Nominating Committee will notify or cause to be notified the faculty of the TEC at least one week prior to a vote. The faculty of the TEC will vote for all officers from names put forward by the nominating sub-committee. A quorum of 50% of the faculty must participate in a vote by email or in person for any vote approving nominations. Approval will require a simple majority of the voting faculty to control. Such elections may be conducted by email. The Directors of the Psychodynamic Psychotherapy and Psychoanalysis programs will be chosen by their respective subcommittees.

Proposed: There shall be a Training and Education Committee as outlined in Article VII. The TEC officers will be nominated by a committee consisting of the current TEC Director, current Associate Director, and the current Directors of the two certificate programs. The Psychodynamic Psychotherapy Program and the Psychoanalysis Program will alternate in recommending candidates for Director and Associate Director, with one program recommending names for Director and the other for Associate Director. The TEC officers will also propose a Secretary to serve. The nominating committee will receive the nominations and prepare the slate of officers. The Nominating Committee will notify or cause to be notified the faculty of the TEC at least one week prior to a vote. The faculty of the TEC will vote for all officers from names put forward by the nominating committee. A quorum of 50% of the faculty must participate in a vote by email or in person for any vote approving nominations. Approval will require a simple majority of the voting faculty to control. Such elections may be conducted by email. The Directors of the Psychodynamic Psychotherapy and Psychoanalysis programs will be chosen by their respective subcommittees.

15. Full Document Update

Proposed Amendment: Since the abbreviation for the American Psychoanalytic Association has changed, the first proposed amendment would be to update the bylaws to reflect this change: From APsaA to APsA.

Anti-Racism Task Force

The anti-racism task force met on August 19th. We discussed the boards response to the recommendation for DEI/anti-racism training. It brought up a conversation about the authority of the anti-racism task force and the desire for a meeting between the task force and the board.

The task force members discussed a counter proposal to the board to fund ten \$100 grants for PCC leaders (board, committees, chairs, faculty) to attend the three-hour virtual Groundwater training or a suitably equivalent participatory training (must include participant discussions and engagement; no video training). The task force will also develop a list of training resources to share with the leadership and PCC members. This recommendation will be presented to the board for discussion at the September meeting.

The Holmes Fellowship timeline is being finalized with a goal of offering the inaugural award in the summer of 2024. There is also interest in hosting a Town Hall to discuss the Holmes Commission Report like the recent series by the AAPCSW.

Circle of Security Committee

COSP Training Date Change: The COSP training that was scheduled for Cary Oct. 23-26 has been rescheduled for March 12-15, 2024. Low registration numbers, funding sources for potential participants delayed, and COS minimums created the need to reschedule. The venue, One Eleven Place in Cary, will remain the same. Deposits will transfer to the new dates.

APA Division 39 Grant: The COS Committee has applied for a \$10,000 grant from the Marsha McCary Fund for COS work statewide. The application highlights the ways in which PCC is bringing psychoanalysis to NC communities through COS programs.

Circle Together Website: In just a few weeks, the statewide PCC sponsored Circle Together network will launch its own website. The website will contain a wealth of information for COS facilitators, parents/caregivers, and potential funders.

Collaboration Within the PCC: The COS committee and TEC continue to communicate and brainstorm around ways that our work can collaborate. We are also in conversation with members of the Curriculum Update Project.

Communications and Marketing

The transition to the new website and database platforms is complete and members are actively updating their information. There are still a few bugs to work out, but by all accounts, members seem pleased with the change.

Our contract with Group 3 expires at the end of September. By that time the new Marketing and Communications Manager should be on board and will assume those responsibilities.

Fundraising Committee

Initial outreach emails have been sent to more than 30 potential major donors and follow-up calls are now in progress as part of our \$1,000,000 Scholarship Campaign. Planning for this year's Annual Fund is also on track for this fall.

Scientific Program Committee

The Scientific Program Committee welcomed Greg Connuck as the new chairperson. The committee unanimously approved a request from the faculty chair to fund a scientific meeting in February via Zoom featuring David Tuckett.

With most programs scheduled for this academic year, the committee is looking to fill slots in the fall of 2024.

Training and Education Committee

Three workshops are planned in the Barkley Faculty Development series.

- 9/9 PCC Faculty Committee Workshop led by Chris Erskine, Steve Bennett, and David Moore
- 12/16 Kris Evans and Christy Tronnier
- 2/17/24 David Tuckett

Recruiting faculty for spring courses is underway.

- New faculty members: Pete Buonaccorsi joined this fall and Ellen Walker will join the faculty in the spring to co-teach Dreams (with Lida Jeck).
- Record enrollment numbers as of today, 124 individuals enrolled; 190 registrations/ "seats."

- The deadline for admissions is September 15th. One application is in progress.
- The TEC has changed the procedures for student evaluation based on the increased class sizes and the more frequent use of guest lectures for electives.
 - Faculty will be responsible for completing evaluations only for Matriculated Students.
 - The instructor will distribute the evaluation to the students.
 - For all core classes, faculty will attest that non-matriculated students performed at a level that would provide credit should they chose to matriculate.
- TEC is reviewing the "grievance" policy to create a safe and objective system where students can report concerns or uncomfortable situations that arise during classes.
- The PPT Committee is seeking new members.
- Burt Hutto has announced that he will step down as PC Director at the end of this academic year.
- The Curriculum Committee has reviewed the Spring course syllabi. Themes are consistent across semesters:
 - Our courses need work on DEI.
 - There is desire for more analytic depth related to gender identity and sexuality.
 - Hoping to develop sub-committee to strengthen the cohesion of the development sequences (Life Cycles 1&2, and Dev Crises 1-4)

Finance Report Notes:

Revenues

- Thanks to two superb electives and record enrollment this fall, tuition revenue is at 95% of the budgeted goal, just \$3,000 shy of the \$54,700 budgeted for the entire year.
- Revenue from Registration Fees has already exceeded the budgeted goal by \$984 due to the increased enrollment.
- Currently at 60% of our budgeted Program-related revenue

Expenses

- Scholarships, Grants Individuals: \$8750 is for the approved Supervision Grants. Funds to cover these are the remaining Pearsall Funds from Grants 1.2 & 3.
- Subscriptions [PEP Web Subscription] are a little high because there were more individuals subscribing to PEP than budgeted. The expense is covered though since members/students pay for their PEP subscriptions (the revenue PEP Web Fee will increase as members are invoiced for the subscription).